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Alexander Miming plc 1s an AIM quoted mineral processing technology company with a reputation for strong
technical management, allied with financial markets expertise. Its core asset is its intellectual property

MetalLeach®

MetaLeach® is our wholly owned
subsidiary and will revolutionise
the extraction processes for
many base metals deposits

by reducing costs, enhancing
operatng margins and
increasing production

See page 5 for mare Informaton

AmmLeach®

Our core technology has

major econgmic, technical and
environmental benefits Unlke
some new technologies, it
requires ng special purpose
built equipment The proprietary
ammomna process selectively
extracts base rmetals from ores
under ambient temperature and

HyperLeach®

A proprietary process which
uttises chlonine based chemstry
for the extraction of metals,
especially copper, znc nickel,
cobalt molybdenum and
rhernium from suiphide ore
deposits and concentrates

See page 8 for more information

pressure conditions

See page 6 for mare information
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Alexander has made important progress towards the

commercialisation of its proprietary AmmLeach® mineral
processing technology. The scope for major operating
and capital cost savings using our technology is of great
interest for use at existing and potential mines.
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2012 Highlights

— Important patents granted for our intellectual property,
encompassing a growing number of important mining
countries and base metals

— Notable progress towards commercialisation

— Good progress with Metalvalue on DRC and zinc
recycling opportunities

— Established excellent foothold in Turkey, a country with
significant potential for Alexander’s leaching technologies
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Chairman’s Statement

Since my statement last year, Alexander
has made important progress towards
the commercialisation of its proprietary
AmmLeach® mineral processing
technology.

With the mining industry’s reinvigorated focus and in
this ‘age of austerity’, on costs and return on capital
employed, we have found that the scope for major
operating and capital cost savings using our
technology is of great interest for existing and potential
mines. Miners are now concentrating on wringing the
most out of their resources, largely as a result of
forceful pressure from investors unhappy with project
and mine costs blow-outs and disastrous acquisitions
at the top of the market.
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In mid-2012, in partnership with MC Process Pty Lid of South
Africa, we announced the successful commissioning of an
AmmLeach® copper/cobalt demonstration plant in South
Africa This was the first AmmLeach® plant in the world with
two circuits going through to copper and cobatlt cathode metal
Moreover, thrs was a major improvement when compared with
the majority of Democratic Republic of Congo’s ('DRC") cobalt,
which s currently produced as a concentrate requinng further
processing outside of the DRC

This success formed the background to achieving the notable
progress towards commercialisation last year This included
the Leaching Technology Licence Agreement ('Navember 2012
Agreement’) signed with Metalvalue Limited (‘Metaivalue’}) We
have worked with Metalvalue to progress the establishment of
a commercial AmmLeach® copper/cobalt processing plant in
the DRC, and to investigate the development of a European
plant for the recovery of zinc frem electnc arc furnace dust
{'EAFD’) Regarding the DRC and EAFD Projects, Metalvalue
15 actively iInvestigating the next steps, with Alexander's
technical involvement, including financing and establishing
dedicated pifot plant(s)

Further to this excellent technical progress, a new agreement
with Metalvalue Capital Heldings (‘MCH?} {to which Metalvalue 1s
the technical consultant and i1s the investment vehicle managed
by Metalvalue Adviscrs SA} was signed, along the terms

of the November 2012 Agreement, which has been terminated
This Is to reflect the closer understanding of the optimal way to
advance projects in the future A major outcome of the revised
agreement for Alexander 15 a doubled gross sales royalty and,
given Alexander’s recently completed equity financing, the
benefit of mirimised equrty dilution

We are devoling considerable attention to Turkey, a country
with significant potential for Alexander’s proprietary leaching
technologies This initiative is supported by the appointment of
Alan Clegg to the Alexander board (see below) who 1s a resident
of Turkey and where he 1s especially well connected We have
reported favourable AmmLeach® amenablity testwork results
for the recovery of zing from samples provided by Red Crescent
Resources Limited (‘RCR'} from its Hakkan Zinc Project in far
south-east Turkey Importantly, the samples were of a zinc
oxide mineralisation type which occurs in several other
locations in the country

As a result of intial favourable interest, we have also decided
to investigate opportunities with German universities, or similar
RAD establishments The Board hopes that this could see
potential tnvolvement in Joint ventures for improvements to

and research and development of our intellectual property
('IP"), leading to the establishment of a pilot plant(s) in Germany

In Austraha, we hope that the opportunity with Altona Mining
Ltmited to investigate the use of AmmbLeach® technology for
copper recovery at its Roseby Project will progress to the
next stage

We have also had favourable AmmLeach® amenability testwork
results for base metals projects in North Africa and Zambia
Both are areas of the world holding attractive potential for
commercial adoption

Underwnting our leaching technology IP 15 our portfolio of
patents, both granted and pending The former having grown
significantly dunng the last year We expect regular news flow
about our surte of patent applications as they progress through
the various stages of the patenting process

Finances

We announced in March that Alexander had raised £751,000
gross through a placing of new ordinary shares to institutional
and other investors, and to certain directors and officers of

the Company We welcome the sigrsficant and strategically
important new shareholders the placing brought, ncluding
those from Turkey, as well as experienced technology investors
in Germany and Switzerland Subsequent to the revised
agreement with Metalvalue, we have also received from 1t a
subscnption of £200,000 for Alexander shares Our current cash
position, coupled with expectations for additional consultancy
and testwork revenue, 1s a scund working capital pesition from
which tc grow the Company

Qutlook

Although the health of the world economy can hardly be sawd

to be in the pink, equity markets have enjoyed an excellent start
to 2013 Hopes are high that healthy world economic growth 1s
within sight Mining companies have battled these headwinds of
economic uncertainty satisfactonly However, there now seems
to be an ndustry acceptance, based on investors' demands, that
improving margins and a proper return on capital are paramount
Duning the period of my review, base metals’ prices have been
volatile and range bound, albeit weakening recently As | said in
my opening remarks, this 1s an environment which suits the
commerciahsation of our technology given its potential sigrificant
impact on many base metals mine economics With the progress
and iniatives announced to date and those foreseeable, | am
highty confident in Alexander's future

| am dehghted that Alan Clegg has recently joined the board
Alan has outstanding global miring industry expenence,
including extensive worldwide involvement with feasibility
studies and rine development, which will be a major asset
for the Company

Finally, | would like to express my appreciation for the continued
hard work and dedication of Alexander's employees, consultants
and directors

(Gl

Matt Sutchffe
Executive Charrman

22 May 2013
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CEO'’s Review of Activities

In Alexander’s investor relations’ corporate
presentation, the opening slide has the following
rhetorical question: Metal resources are finite, how
do we supply a growing world population with base
metals - build new mines; get more from existing
mines? The question is never more apposite. Mining
companies face a barrage of risks throughout the
mining cycle, from discovery, mining, through to
closure. As highlighted in the Chairman’s statement,
the mining industry is concentrating on wringing the
most out of its core, albeit wasting, asset ~ ore
reserves. We are excited by the outstanding
opportunity that this represents for our innovative
mineral processing technology.

Our efforts over the last year have continued towards the objective of
secunng commercial adoption of our AmmLeach® technology. Good
progress has been made. The prionty has been to secure agreements
with third parties that will eventually lead to the establishment of pilot
plants to demonstrate AmmLeach® recovenng the three most prospective
metals of copper, cobalt and zinc¢. This would be the precursor to a
decision to commit to using the AmmLeach® process in new mines on
commercial terms to be agreed.

Alexander has adopted a flexible dual approach to the commercialisation
of its technology. We will consider either 1ssuing a licence in exchange
for royalties, cash fees or minority equity interests in projects. As a result,
we have had, and continue to have, discussions with the gamut of
companies in the mining industry about using the Company's leaching
technology, principally for copper, copper/cobalt and zinc.

| am pleased to report on the Company’s progress opposite.
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Metalvalue Licence Agreement

Alexander announced that 1t had signed a Leaching Technology
Licence Agreement with Metalvalue Limited (‘Metalvalue')

last year (the ‘November 2012 Agreement’}) Since then, the
relationship with Metalvalue has been most fruitful and seen a
significant advancement towards the commercial adoption of
our breakthrough leaching technology for several substantal
opportunities Further to this excellent technical progress, in
more detal below, a new agreement with Metalvalue Capital
Holdings and Alexander has been signed This has resulted in

a notably improved agreement, reflecting a closer understanding
of the optimal way to advance projects in the future A
significant outcome s a doubled gross sales royalty of 2 0%
and, given Alexander’s recently completed equity financing,

the benefit of minimised equity dilution The full details of the
new agreement were set out in the anncuncement of mid May,
including a finance facility for a potential pilot plant in Australia

Metaleach®

MetalLeach Limited 1s Alexander's subsidiary for the
commoercralisation of its proprietary hydrometallurgical
mineral processing technologies These technologies
have the potential to revoluticnise the extraction
processes for many base metal deposits reducing
costs, and/or improving recovenes and hence
enhancing operating margins at the mine ste Being
capable of preducing metal on-site greatly enhances
the mine gate economics compared to conventicnal
concentrators In addition i many cases the
technologies will enable the treatment of base

metals deposits which hitherte have not been possible
to treat The technologies are especially suitable

for ligh-acid-consuming carbonate hosted ores

Metaleach® owns the intellectual property to

two ambient temperature ambient pressure
hydrometallurgical technologies, namely AmmLeach®
{patents pending) and HyperLeach® {patents pending)
These technologies are environmentally friendly, cost
effective processes for the extraction of base metals
from amenable ore deposits and concentrates allowing
the production of high value products at the mine

sita (i @ metal powder or sheets) These tachnologies
were devaloped as a result of the Company s work

at its former Leon copper project in Argentina and
subseguent research and development undertaken
by MetaLeach s consultant Dr Nicholas Welham

Democratic Republic of the Congo

In order to investigate the feasibiity of an AmmLeach®

toll treatment plant to produce copper and cobalt, serving
small scale miners on the Copperbelt, we collaborated with
Johannesburg based MC Process (Pty} Ltd to establish a
small scale demonstration plant at its premises in South Africa

The demonstration plant was successfully commissiened and
produced its first copper and cobalt cathode metal in early 2012
This was the first AmmlLeach® plant in the werld with two circuits
through to copper and cobalt cathode metal, compared with

the majority of DRC cobalt currently produced as a concentrate
which requires further processing outside the DRC

We were delighted with the results obtained as they were
matenal in secunng Interest and support from Metalvalue to
estabhsh the first commercial scale AmmLeach® treatment
plant in the DRC

The DRC hosts world class copper deposits and also currently
supplies over half of the world’s annual cobalt mine production
Alexander believes that its AmmLeach® process offers a clear
competitive advantage for the production of copper and cobait
through to metal cathode in the DRC from high-acid-consuming
carbonate copper ores In addition, the DRC Government has
emphasised its intent to see as much value added in country
from its mineral wealth by announctng a ban on the export of
metal concentrates This 1s where we see a major opportunity
for our leaching technology as it enables the mine owner to
produce metal at the mine

Metalvatue 1s actively investigating, with Alexander's technical
mvolvement and in conjunction with support from a leading
commodity trading company, the use of a suitable existing plant
inthe DRC This has entalled site visits and detailed analysis
Metalvalue hopes to progress detalled negotiations for a plant
to produce initially copper cathode meta! and also to secure a
major supply of ore feed to the plant

Commercialisation of AmmLeach®

The following metal ores are particular targets for
the commercialisation of the Ammteach® process

* Copper and copper/cobal oxide deposits

* Zinc oxide deposits

» Nickel latente (saprolite} deposits

« Gold/copper oxide and siver/zinc oxide (alkall leaching)
s Molybdenum oxides

Geographic diversification Is offered as the countries
with the most prospective geclogy for hosting high acid
consuming copper (Cu) and zin¢ (Zn) exides are Chile
(Cu), Peru (Zn), Mexico Zr} Central Amenica (Zn), USA
(Cu). Democratic Republic of the Congo (Cu, Cw/Ca),
Zambia {Cu) Turkey {Zn, Cu) and Australia (Cu)

5
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CEO’s Review of Activities contnue

The Amml.each® Process

The AmmLeach® process {patents granted and pend:ing)

1s a proprietary process for the extraction of base metals,
especially copper zinc nickel and cobalt from ore deposits
and concentratas The process utiises ammonia based
chermistry to selectively extract metals from ores under
ambtent temperature and pressure conditions The target ores
will typically be high acid consuming AmmLeach® is a viable
alternative to acid leach processes as it 1s far more selective
for valuable metals whilst rejecting unwanted metals This
selectivity offers a considerable number of technical and
economic henefits through simplfication of the flowsheet

The technology consists of the same three major stages
as acid processes 1 e leaching solvent extraction {SX) and
electrowinnng (EW} The leaching occurs in two steps, an
ore specific pre-treatment which converts the metals into
a soluble form and the main leaching step Matals can be
directly electrowon using industry standard unit operations
Unlike some new technologies, no special equipment 1s
needed The AmmLeach® process can directly replace
acid leaching In an existing operation

AmmLeach® technology 1s suttable for both low grade heap
leaghing and higher grade tank leaching Polymetallic deposits
can be reacly handled using standard solvent extrachon and
sclution purification techniques

The difference from acid leaching is that the leaching 15
congucted in moderately alkabne solution with ammonia
present to selectively leach base metals The use of alkaline
condions allows the use of AmmLeach® on high carbonate
ores where acid consumphtion would be prohibitive

The AmmLeach® process has an extremely high selectiity
for the targat metal over ron, aluminuim and manganese,
which are insoluble under AmmLeach® conditions There
are also no potential problems due to jarosite or gypsum
precipitation reducing permeability in the heap or scaling
problems in the solvert extraction plant Additionally,
ammonia, unlike acid doesn't react with aluminos:licates
and terrosilicates, whose products can cause drainage and
permeability problems in heaps

Compared with previcus ammonsacal processes almost

any ore mineralogy can be treated as the whole AmmLeach®
process 1s fallored to individual ore bodies and consequentty
has substantially lower ammonua losses In theory all the
ammonia can be recoverad, however in practice small losses
do ocour

Decommissioning of the heap 1s extremely simple and the
potential for acid mine drainage 1s virtually eliminated After
final leaching the heap 1s simply washed 1o recover ammorn:a
and then left to revegetate, with the restdual ammonia acting
as a fertiser

The alkaline residue allows immed:ate application of cyanide
leachung of gold and silver in ores where there s an economic
precious metal content after removal of high cyanide
consuming metals such as copper

Turkey

We have taken a strong interest in the potential for our
technology in Turkey The country has one of the fastest growing
eccnomies In the world and yet, despite huighly prospective
geology, has very modest domestic base metals production
which meets a small fraction of its needs The government

15 highly supportive of addressing the matter and, in turn,

the Company has already mvestigated several interesting
opportunities These efforts have been boistered by Alan Clegg
recently joining the Alexander board Alan 1s a mining engineer, a
resident of Turkey and has considerable mining expenence both
in production and project development

Dunng the year, we reported favourable AmmLeach® amenability
testwork results for the recovery of zinc frem samples provided
by Red Crescent Resources Limited (‘RCR’) from its Hakkan
Zinc Project in far south-sast Turkey The samples were of a
type of commen zinc oxide/non sulphide mineralisation that
occurs in other parts of Turkey (and the world)

The Makkar testwork showed that zinc recoveries of at least
80% should be possible once the pre-treatment and leaching
condrtions are optimised The completion of these amenability
tests has shown that AmmLeach® could be used for leaching
zinc from the Hakkar gre to produce either zinc metal or an
intermediate zinc oxde product The findings of this testwork
and recommended next steps were reperted to RCR for therr
consideration

Turkey 1s the world's largest importer of sron scrap which 1s

all recycled to produce steel As a result the country produces
over 300,000 tonnes per annum of electnic arc furnace dust
(‘EAFD’) as a waste product Although some EAFD 1s being
recycled in Waelz kilng, 2 large quantity still poses a senous
environmental problem with high disposal costs, and the
current technologies do not offer satisfactory solutions

In conjunction with Metalvalue, we have investigated the
feasibility of an efficient and environmentally friendly solution
using our leaching technology for treating EAFD to recover
its zinc content Preliminary testwork has shown highly
encouraging results, and the next steps on developing a
pilot plant are being considered
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Australia

Metalvalue has agreed in principle to make available to
Alexander a loan facility for co-financing a pilot plant i Austrahia
to demonstrate Ammbeach® The conditions pertaining to this
loan facilty, if Alexander elects to draw it down, were set out

It &an announcement made in mid May 2013

The pilot plant will have a nominal throughput of itpd of

ore {e g copper or copper/cobalt) and with the capability to
produce up to ~10kg/day of each cathode metal This plant

will complement the previous successful Amml.each® pilot plant
work the Company carmed out for copper in Argentina and, more
recently, for copper and cobalt in South Africa The pilot plant
will be suitable for testing large samples from around the world
as part of the Company’s AmmLeach® commercialisation
activities The pilot plant will be capable of operation in both
agitated and heap leach configurations and, with minor
modification, capable of use for HyperLaach® too

Also in Australia, AmmLeach® amenability testwork yielded
favourable results for the recovery of copper from samples
provided by Altona Miming Limited from its Blackard deposit,
forming part of the Roseby Project in northwest Gueensland,
Austraha

Zinc

The vast majority {~95%) of world zinc metal production
uses smelting to recover and refine zing metal cut of
zinc-containing feed matenal such as zinc concentrates
or zinc oxides Development of a new hydrometallurgical
process route for zing oxides has the potential to simplify
zng refiring

Maetal each® has developed a novel (patents apphed

for) process for the solvent extraction of zinc from
ammoniacal solutions Testwork has shown that zinc
can be afficiently extracted using commaercially avalable
reagents in a single stage and stnpped with acid
solutions, with better efftciancy and greater selectmty
than has previously been reported

A wide range of different oxide zing minerzlogies can
patentally be treated by AmmLeach®, including those
with significant hemimorphite content which presently
can only be treated using acid In AmmLeach® solutions,
the leaching can be extremely rapid provided the
condrions are appropnately matched to the ore The
acid route requires ore containing »>10% zinc to be
economically viable The co dissolution of silica and

ron 1N the acid resutts in a very complex flow sheet

Recent work on Electric Arc Furnace Dust (EAFD}
has been extremely encouraging with 2inc recoveries
of >B0% producing solutions of >40g/L znc with low
impunties The market for 2inc oxide 15 large and this
can be produted directly from the leach solution

Germany

The Company has signed a Corporate and Investor Relations
Consukancy Agreement with General Research of Munich,
which builds en a strong level of interest already generated
for our technology The purpose of the agreement 1s to build
an investor relations programme around General Research’s
contacts in Europe, especially in Germany Importantly, it 1s
also designed to investigate the opportunities with German
universities, or similar R&D establishments, for potential interest
In joint ventures with the Company for improvements to and
research and development of our intellectual property leading
to the establishment of a pilot plant(s) in Germany

Zambia

The highly prospective central African Copperbelt straddles the
DRC and Zamba and we have made initial investigation into
opporturities in the latter This has included conducting some
AmmLeach® amenability testwork, with encouraging results

Other regions

Metalvalug's contacts with mine owners and COpper processors
in south-east Asia have allowed Alexander to present tts solutions
using AmmLeach® to enable securing direct copper cathode take-
off Metalvalue expects to progress these projects in 2013

In North Africa testwork on a zinc opportunity was undertaken,
again with very ancouraging results

Copper

Copper 1s the world's most important base metal by
value and its price I1s a bellwsther of world industnal
production Appraximately 20% of global mined copper
production 1s produced from oxide oras using soivent
extraction-electrowinning (SX-EW) hydrometallurgy

The Company beheves that is leaching technology

has the potential to increase significantly the share

of global copper produced using hydromatallurgical
processes Hydrometallurgically recoverad coppear

1S much more attractive to mine owners than the
production of concentrates from sulphide ores as

it results 1n the production of high value cathodes at
the mine When sold these realise almost 100% of

the copper content, compared to concentrates where
owners may recewve as little as 60% of the copper value

A scoping study indicated that it 1s possible to convert
an acid heap leach operation directly to an AmmLeach®
with mimmal capital expendiure
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CEO’s Review of Activities contnued

Business Risks

Inherent risk diversification ts offered both geographically

and by metal When compared with conventional exploration-
driven mining companies, the business nsks differ markedly
The stages at which MetalLeach® technology 1s of interest to a
potential user is from the project feasibiity study stage, through
to existing miming operations As such, the nherent technical
risks of the mning industry in discovering a potential new mine
do not apply as a deposit has already been found Further
business risks are referred to in the Directors' Report under
Risk Management on page 12

Intellectual Property

Maetaleach® has a portfolio of Australian and international
patents and patent applications to protect its technologies
and data The strategy for protection 1s the development of
unigque intellectual property and patenting key aspects of
its AmmLeach® and HyperLeach® inventions in a number

of countnies This strategy has been implemented through
our patent attorneys, and 1s designed to allow the Company
to protect the commerciahisation of its technologies in key
countries of interest

As well as the mportance of being granted patents in Austraha,
it 13 noteworthy that we have been granted in the USA a

patent for a Method for Ammoniacal Leaching, which 1s the
overarching AmmLeach® patent in our intellectual property
portfolio Along with Australia, the USA 1s a leading country

for patent applications and I1s noted for its ngorous process In
determining the granting of patents This patent encompasses
all possible application in the AmmLeach® patent family

Patent applications achieving the successful granting of a
patent continue at a steady pace and are tabulated below

Metaleach Limited Granted Patents

HyperLeach® process

The HyperLeach® process {patents granted and pending},
although less advanced, has significant potential
Hyperteach® 1s a propretary process daveloped by
Metaleach® for the extraction of metals, especially
copper zinc nickel cobalt, molybdenum and rhenium
trom sutphide ore depasits and concentratas The
process utiises chlonne based chermistry to solubilise
metals from ores under ambient temperature and
prassure conditions The HyperLeach® process can

be operated as either heap leach or tank leach

Great promise has been shown on molybdenum=rherum
suiphude ores with low reagent consumption making
heap leaching of such ores economically feastble for the
first tme Preliminary tank laaching of flotation talings
has also been conducted with considerable success

Low grade nickel sulphide ores have also shown great
promise with high metal recovenes being achieved
dunng agtated leaches Preliminary work has indicated
that heap leaching may be possible for some oras This
allows the treatment of ores wiuch are oo low grade to
process via the conventional gnnd float and smekl route

HyperLeach® can be used as a pre-treatment for
AmmLeach® to provide the best of both processes
HyperLeach® solubilises and mobilises target metals
from sulphides with AmmLeach® leaching the target
metals selectively This combination allows processing
of a whols ore body from the oxide cap through the
transition zene to the sulphice basement

TITLE METALS/QORES GOUNTRIES

Maethaod for Ammoniacal Leaching General USA DRC & South Afnca
Mathod for Leaching Cobalt from Cxidised Cobalt Oras Co Australia & South Africa

Method for Leaching of a Coppercontaining Ore Cu Australia

Method for Extracting Zinc from Agueous Ammeniacal Sclutions 2n Australia USA & Mexico

Method for Leaching Zing from a Zinc Qre Zn Austraia

Method of Cxidative Leaching of Sulfide Cres and/or Goncentrates Sulphide Australla South Africa & Mongclia

Method of Oxidative Leaching of Molybdenurn — Rhenium Sulfide Ores andfor Concentrates Mo, Re - sulphide Australia

Method of Leaching of Copper and Molybdenum

Cu, Mo Australia
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Directors

Matt Sutcliffe Executive Charman

Matt Sutchffe graduated from the University
of Nottingham in 1980 with a PhD in mining
engineenng He s also a chartered engineer
and worked as a mining engineer in
undergreund nickel mines from 1990 to
1994 with In¢o Lumitad within its Manitoba
diwvision He has additional expenence in
aperating gold and coal mines gained whilst
working with Gencor and British Coal

For 10 years before founding the Company,
he worked in the City of London as a mining
analyst and corporate financier specialising
In the resources sector During this tme he
was a mining analyst at T Hoare & Co, head
of miming at Willams de Broe and a director
of corporate finance at Evolution Beeson
Gregory {now Evolution Securities) At
Evclution Beeson Gregory, he advised a
large number of public natural resources
companies, as well as arranging a number
of equity listings for jumior and miud-tier
mining and oll and gas companies on

AIM Duning thus time, he was recognised

as one of the industry pioneers for isting
mining companies on AiM

Martin Rosser Chief Executive Officer

Martin Rosser 1s a chartered mining
engineer who has 31 years® practical
industry and financial markets expenience
since graduating with a degree in miming
engineering from the Camborne School
of Mines in 1981

tnitizatly, ha spent five years working as

a mining engineer in Australia, both on
underground and surface gold mines,
including time with Western Mining
Corporation at Central Norseman In 1987,
he returned to the UK and worked as a
mining analyst with two City stockbrokers

He then Jjoined tha natural resources
industry specialist irm of David Willamson
Associates Limited in 1989 as a founder
employse, and subsequently Managing
Director Dunng this time, until joining
Alexander in June 2005, he provided
extensive carporate finance advisory and
arranger services to the firm's worldwide
natural resources industry clients

From 2002, until its takeover by Lonmin plc
in January 2007, he was a non-executive
director of TSX listed AfnOre Limited

Roger Davey Non-Executive Director

Reger Davey I1s a chartered mining engineer
and a graduate of the Camborna School of
Mines, with over 30 years' expenence in the
mining industry For 13 years, untll the end
of 2010, he was an Assistant Director and
the Semior Mining Engineer at N M
Rothschild {London) in the Mining and
Metals project finance team, whera he

had responsibility for the assessment of

the technicat nsks associated with project
loans Mr Davey was appointed to the
board of Alexander in August 2006

Prior to this, his expenience covered

the financing, development and operation
of both underground and surtace mining
operations in gold and base metals at
senior management and director level

n South America, Africa and the United
Kingdom This includes, from 1984-1997,
betng the General Manager of Mtnorco
{AngloGold) subsidianes in Argentina,
where he was respongsible for the
development of the US$270m Cerro
Vanguardia gold-silver mine

Emil Morfett Non-Executive Director

Emil Morfett, who joined the beard in 2007,
has over 30 years' of relevant, expenence,
with eight years in the mining industry and
twenty years in mining finance He graduated
with a B S¢ in geology from the University
of London and worked for R Tinto in Saud
Arabia As a mature student, he completed
an M Sc in mineral exploration at Queens
University, Ontano, Canada

MHe then worked in Johannasburg for
Goldfields of South Afnca In 1987, he moved
to London to work as a mining analyst in
1993 he became the Global Head of Mining
Research at Bank Panbas and left n 1997 to
become Vice President and Head of Mining
Research for J P Morgan in London

In 2001, he founded his own consuling
business (Millstone Grt Limited, of which
he 1s Managing Director), providing beth
equity and debt focused mining research
and strategic advice He continues to
provide independent, bespoke research
and financial analysis of mining companies
and projects to select hadge funds,
merchant banks and mining companies

James Bunyan Non-Executive Director

James Bunyan, who joined the board in Apnl
2005, holds an MBA from Warwick University
and a BSc in Biochermistry from Henot-Watt
He specialises in corporate development with
international business development across

a broad range of industnal and commercial
sectors wordwide

He has proven business skills in strategic
business planning, mergers, acquisitions,
disposals, turnarounds and fundraising, with
particular expenence in mining He was for
five years a director of Tiberon Minerals Ltd,
which developed the Nui Phao deposit in
Vietnam from an exploration concept to one
of the largest tungsten polymetallic deposis
in the world

Alan Clegg Non-Executive Director

Alan Clegg 1s a rmning engineer with Bntish
and South Afncan citizenship and 15 a
resident of Turkey He has over 35 years’
expenence ganed from working in mining
and minerals projects in more than 160
countries This has been as team leader

or a member of teams that have completed
feasibility studies and/or constructed over
sixty mining and mineral projects with a
combined value in excess of US$8bn over
the last twenty years He was a founder,
Executive Manager and Chief Consulting
Engineer of the Mining Engineanng
Consulting group within the TWP Holdings
Ltd practice, a major prowider of engineenng
design, procurement, construction
management and asset services largely
within the mining sector The TWP Holdings
group was recently acquired and 1s now part
of the Worley Parsons Group, one of the
leading global providers of technical, project
and cperational support services to the
mining and energy sectors

He s a registeraed Professional Mining
Engineer (Pr Eng), a registered Professional
Construction Project Manager (Pr CPM)
and a registered Project Management
Professional (PMP) He has professional
Fellowship status with the South Afncan
Institute of Mining & Metallurgy (FSAIMM)
and the Institute of Quarrying (FIOQ)
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Corporate and social responsibility \

The Group's core values are

+ To be a good corporate citizen, demenstrating integrity
in each business and community in which we operate

+ To be open and honest in all our dealings, while respecting
commercial and personal confidentiality

* To be objective, consistent and farr with all our stakeholders

+ To respect the dignity and wellbeing of all our stakeholders
and all those with whom we are involved

* To operate professionally in a performance-orientated culture
and be commidted to continucus improvement

Our Stakeholders

We are committed to developing mutuaily beneficial
partnerships with gur stakeholders throughout the Iife cycle of
our activities and operations Our principal stakeholders include
our shareholders, employees, ther families, and employee
representatives, the communities In which we operate, our
business partners and local and national governments

Environmental Policy

The Group 1s aware of the potential impact that its operations
may have on the environment It will ensure that all of its
activities and operations have the minimum environmental
impact possible

The Group intends to meet or exceed international standards
of excellence with regard to environmental matters Our
operations and activities will be in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations We will adopt and adhere to standards
that are protective of both human health and the environment
For our cperations we will develop and implement closure and
reclamation plans that provide for long-term environmental
stability and swuitable post-mining beneficial land-uses at all
relevant sites

Each employee (including contractors} will be held accountable
for ensuring that those employees, equipment, facilities and
resources within their area of responsibilty are managed to
comply with this policy and to minmise environmental nsk

Ethical Policy

The Group 1s committed to comply with all laws, regulations,
standards and international conventions which apply to our
businesses and to our relattonships with our stakeholders
Where laws and regulations are non-existent or inadequate,

we will maintan the highest reasonable standards appropriate
We will In an accurate, timely and verifiable manner, consistently
disclose matenal information about the Group and its
performance This will be readily understandable by appropriate
ragulators, our stakeholders and the pubiic

The Group comples and will continue to comply to the fullest
extent with current and future anti-bribery legislation

We will endeavour to ensure that no employee acts in a manner
that would in any way contravene these pninciples The Group
will take the apprepriate disciplinary action cencerning any
contravention

Community Policy

The Group’s aim IS to have a positive impact on the people,
cultures and communities in which it operates It will be
raspectful of local and indigenous people, ther values,
traditions, culture and the environment The Group will also
strive to ensure that surrounding communities are informed
of, and where possible, involved in, develcpments which
affect them, throughout the life cycle of our operations It will
undertake social mvestment initiatives in the areas of need
where we can make a practical and meamngful contnbution

Labour Policy

The Group 18 committed to upholding fundamental human rights
and, accordingly, we seek to ensure the implermentation of farr
employment practices The Group will also commit to creating
workplaces free of harassment and unfarr discrimination

Health and Safety Policy

The Group 18 committed to complying with all relevant
occupational health and safety laws, regulations and standards
In the absence thereof, standards reflecting best practice will be
adopted
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Corporate governance

Code of best practice

The bsting rules of the Fuinancial Conduct Authority incorporate
the UK Corporate Governance Code, which sets out the
principles of Good Governance, and the Code of Best Practice
for bsted companies The Board intends that, so far as 1s
relevant for a group of its size and stage of development, it
will comply with the UK Corporate Governance Code The
Board has established appropriately constituted Audit and
Remuneration Committees with formally delegated
responsibiiities

The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors currently comprises six members,
including two executive directors and four non-executive
directors The Board has a wealth of both corporate finance and
mining experience, from exploration, development and through
to production The structure of the Board ensures that no one
individual or group dominates the decision making process

Board meetings are held regularly to provide effective leadership
and overall management of the Group's affairs through the
schedule of matters reserved for Board decisions This includes
the approval of the budget and business plan, major caprtal
expenditure, acquistions and disposals, risk management
policies and the approval of financial statements All directors
have access to the advice and services of the Company's
solictors and the Company Secretary, who 1s responsible for
ensuring that all Board procedures are followed Any director
may take independent professional advice at the Company’s
expense In the furtherance of thewr duties

The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, which meets not less than twice a year,
considers the Group’s financial reporting (including accounting
pohcies) and internal financial controls The Audit Committee,
which comprises Mr E Morfett (Chairman) and Mr R Davey,
receves reports from management and the external auditor to
enable it to fulfil its responsibility for ensunng that the financial
performance of the Group I1s property monitored and reported
on In addition, it keeps under review the scope, cost and results
of the external audit, and the independence and objectivity of
the external auditor

The Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee, which meets when necessary,

is responsible for making recommendations tc the Board on
directors’ and semor executives’ remuneration The Committee
compnses Mr R Davey (Chairman) and Mr J Bunyan Non-
executive directors’ remuneration and conditions are censidered
and agreed by the Board

Financial packages for executive directors are established by
reference to those prevaiting in the employment market for
executives of equivalent status both in terms of level of
respensibility of the position and their achievernent of
recognised |ob qualifications and skills The Committee will
also have regard to the terms which may be required to attract
the equivalent experienced executive 1o join the Board from
another company

Internal Controls

The directors acknowledge ther responsibiity for the Group’s
systems of internal controls and for reviewing therr effectiveness
These internal controls are designed to safeguard the assets of
the Group and to ensure the reliability of financtal nformation for
both internal use and external publication Whilst the diractors
acknowledge that no internal control system can provide
absolute assurance against matenal misstatement or loss,

they have reviewed the controls that are in place and are taking
the appropnate action to ensure that the systems continue to
develop in accordance with the growth of the Group

Relations with Shareholders

The Board attaches great importance to maintamning good
relations with its shareholders Extensive information about the
Group’s activities Is included in the Annual Report and Accounts
and Intenm Reports, which are sent to all shareholders Market
sensitive Infermation is regularly released to all shareholders
concurrently in accordance with stock exchange rules The
Annual General Meeting provides an opportunity for all
sharehaolders to commurnicate with and to question the Board
on any aspaect of the Group's actvitites The Company mamntains
a corporate website where information on the Group is regularly
updated and all anhouncements are posted as they are
released The Company welcomes communication from both

its private and institutional shareholders

Share dealing

The Company has adopted a share dealing code for directors
and relevant employses in accordance with the Rules of the
AlM Market of the London Stock Exchange and will take
proper steps to ensure compliance by the directors and
those employees

11
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Directors’ report

The directors present theiwr report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012

Prnincipal activities

The principal activity of the Group 1s the commercialisation of
the Group's proprietary mineral processing technologies, ether
through licensing to third parties and/or the acquisition of equity
stakes in amenable deposits

Business Review
A review of the business and the future developments of the
Group Is set out on pages 4to 8

Results

Tha Group made a consclidated net loss for the year of
£1,537,000 (2011 £1983,000) The directors do not recommend
the payment of a dividend (2011 nily

Research and development

The Group, through its wholly owned subsiditary Metaleach
Lirmited, 1s involved in the ongoing research and development
of its proprietary mineral processing technologies, Ammleach®
and HyperLeach® Further details thereof are set out on pages
4t08

Risk Management

The successful commercialisation of the Group's propretary
mineral processing technologies 1s subject to a number of risks,
both in relation to third party hicensing opportunities and the
acquisition of equity interests in amenable deposits for the
Group In addition, hke all businesses, the Group I1s exposed
to financial nsks The Board adopts a prudent approach to
minimise these rnsks as far as practicable, consistent with the
corporate objectives of the Group These rnisks are summansed
below, togethar with the disclosures set out In note 18 to the
Financial Statements

Development nisks

The Group’s strategy to commercialise its proprietary leaching
technologies, aither through third party licensing agreements
or direct equity interests in amenable deposits, 1s subject to
specific technical nsks relating to the technologies and wider
technical risks relevant to the mining industry as a whole

There 15 a nsk that the Group will be unable to negotiate
surtable icensing arrangements with third parties for the use
of the leaching technologies The Group may also be unable
to negotiate the acquisition of equity interests in amenabie
deposits at commercially attractive prices, or finance the
acquisition thereof

The Group's proprietary leaching tachnologies have not yet been
applied on an industnal scale The results of testwork performed
to date, both in the laboratory and at ptlot plant scale, may

not be reproducible at an industrial scale in an economically
efficient manner

The Group mitigates the developmental nsk for the
commercialisation of the technologies by holding discussions
with a wide range of companies representing a number of target
projects and mines with a diversification of both metals and
countries

Loss of key personnel from the Group

The commercialisation of the Group's leaching technologies 1s
dependent upon the continuing application of skills provided by .
hughly qualified and expenienced employees and consultants
There ts a risk that the Group’s management, employees and
consultants will be targeted by competiters The loss of key
employees and consultants may adversely affect the ability of
the Group to achieve its objectives The Group rmitigates this
nsk by ensuring that all key employees and consultants are
rewarded appropriately and participate n the Group’s share
option scheme, further details of which are set out in note 20
to the Financial Statements

Intellectuat property nsk

The Group’s success depends in part on its ability to obtain
and maintain protection for its intellectual property, so that it
can ensure that royalties or icence fees are payable for the use
of its proprietary leaching technologies The Group has applied
for patents covering its leaching technologies Although some
have been granted, there Is a risk that other patents may not be
granted and the Group may not be able to exclude compettors
from developing similar technologies

However, the Group actively manages its intellectual property
nghts portfolio, which includes significant propnetary know- I
how in addition to the patent pending innovations When
dealing with potential clients, the Group ensures that
confidentiality agreements are signed acknowledging the

full range of the Group's intellectual property In addition,
contracts are In ptace with all relevant employees, consultants,
contractors and advisers to ensure that all intellectual property
rights arising In the course of their work on behalf of the Group
vest with the Group, and that such intellectual property can only
be used for the benefit of the Group

Envirenmental nsk

The Group I1s subject to environmental regulations at its
remaining praperty in Peru A breach of such regulations may
result in the imposition of fines, penalties and other adverse
effects on activities

Currency exchange nsk

The Group reports its financial results in Sterling, while a
proporticn of the Group’s costs and revenues are incurred in US
Dollars, Australian Dollars, New Zealand Dollars or the Peruvian
Nuevo Soles Accordingly, mevements in the Sterling exchange
rate with these currencies could have a detrimental effect on the
Group’s results or financial condition
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Liquidity nsk

The Group has to date relied upon shareholder funding of its
activities Development of mineral properties, the acquisition

of new opportunities, or the recovery of royalty/licensing income
from third party assets, may be dependent upon the Group's
ability to obtain further financing through joint ventures, equity
or debt financing or other means Although the Group has been
successful in the past in obtaining equity financing, there can
be no assurance that the Group will be able to obtain adequate
financing 1n the future or that the terms of such financing will
be favourable

Credit nsk

The Group has no matenial credit risk at the dats of this report
At 31 December 2012, the remaning instalment payments of
£101,000 for the sale of its subsidtary, Alexander Gold Group,
were secured by mortgage securnty over properties of the
buyers Those remaining payments were settled in full on

28 February 2013

Commodity pnce nsk

The Group's propristary leaching technologies have the potenttal
to reduce costs and enhance margins at the mine site The level
of interest from mining companies in commercialisation of the
Group’s proprietary leaching technologies may be affected, for
better or worse, by future movernents in global metal prices

Going concern

Based on a review of the Group’s budgets and cash flow
forecasts, the directors have identified that if current and near-
term corporate development opportunities are unsuccessful

in providing adequate funding then the Company will need

te raise finance within the next twelve months in order to
continue 1ts operations and to meet its commitments

In common with many rmining, exploration and intellectual
property development companies, the Company needs to

raise finance for sts activities in discrete tranches to finance

its activities for hmited periods The Directors are confident

that the Company currently has a range of corporate
development opportunities which could include significant
funding cutcomes and moreover that, if necessary, any further
funding can be raised as and when required On this basis, thay
have concluded that 1t 1s appropnate to draw up the financial
statements on the going concern basis However, there can be
no certainty that either development opportunities or atternative
funding will be secured in the necessary timescales and this
indicates the existence of a matenal uncertainty that may cast
significant doubt on the abibity of the company and the group

to continue as a going concern The financial statements do not
include any adjustments, particularty in respect of fixed assets,
investments, receivables and provisions for winding up which
could be necessary if the Company and Group ceased to be

a going concern

Directors

The directors of the Company who held office dunng the year
and ther beneficial Interests in the shares of the Company at
the year-end were as follows

Shares Shares
held at held at
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
Number Number
M L Sutchffe
Executive Charrman 10,906,000 10,906,000
M L Rosser
Chief Executive Officer - -
J S Bunyan
Non-Executive Deputy Chairman - -
R O Davey
Non-Executive - -
E M Morfett
Non-Executive 200,000 -
11,106,000 10,906,000

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association, Mr M
L Sutehffe and Mr R O Davay will retire by rotation at the Annual
General Meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election

Subsequent to the year-end, Mr AM Clegg was elected as a
non-executive director on 21 February 2013 Mr Clegg, having
been elected since the previous Annual General Meeting, will
retire at the Annual General Meeting in accordance with Article
88 1 of the Company's Anticles of Association and, being
eligible, will offer himself for re-election

Qther than therr service contracts, no director has a matenal
interest in a contract with the Company Details of directors’
remuneration are set out in note & to the financial statements

During the year, directors’ and officers’ liability insurance was
maintained for directors and other officers of the Group as
permitted by the Companies Act 2006

13
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Directors’ report contnusa

The directors’ interests in share options are as follows

Current
exercise pnce

Qptions hald at
31 December 2012

Date of grant First date of exercise Final date of exercise

M L Sutcliffe 1,000,000 10p 23 Mar 2005 23 Mar 2007 22 Mar 2015
M L Sutchffe 150,000 10p 15 July 2009 15 July 2010 14 July 2018
M L Rosser 500,000 10p 31 May 2005 31 May 2007 30 May 2015
M L Rosser 250,000 10p 1 Aug 20086 1 Aug 2008 31 Jul 2016
M L Rosser 500,000 10p 20 Dec 2007 20 Dec 2009 18 Dec 2017
M L Rosser 1,000,000 10p 12 Jun 2008 12 Jun 2009 11 Jun 2018
M L Rosser 150,000 10p 15 July 2009 15 July 2010 14 July 2019
J S Bunyan 250,000 10p 23 Mar 2005 23 Mar 2007 22 Mar 2015
J 8 Bunyan 250,000 10p 12 Jun 2008 12 Jun 2009 11 Jun 2018
J 8 Bunyan 150,000 10p 15 July 2008 15 July 2010 14 July 2019
R O Davey 250,000 10p 1 Aug 2006 1 Aug 2008 31 Jul 2016
R O Davey 250,000 10p 12 Jun 2008 12 Jun 2009 11 Jun 2018
R O Davey 150,000 10p 15 July 2008 15 July 2010 14 July 2019
E M Morfett 250,000 10p 28 Nov 2007 28 Nov 2009 27 Nov 2017
E M Morfett 250,000 10p 12 Jun 2008 12 Jun 2008 11 Jun 2018
E M Morfett 150,000 10p 15 July 2009 15 Juty 2010 14 July 2018
Total 5,500,000

No options held by directors were exercised or lapsed during the period

Substantial shareholders
Details of the Company’s substantial shareholders are set out
on the Company's website at www alexandermuung com

Payment of suppliers

The Group’s policy on the payment of suppliers 1s to settle
the terms of the payments with those suppliers when agreeing
the terms of each transaction, ensure that those suppliers are
made aware of the terms of payment and abide by the terms
of payment

At the year-end there were 25 days' (2011 20 days} purchases
in Group trade payables

Polhtical and chantable contnbutions
The Group has made no poltical or charitable donations in the
year (2011 nil)

Share capital and share options

Details of the share capital of the Company at 31 December
2012 are set out In note 18 to the financral statements Detalls
of the share options outstanding at 31 December 2012 are set
out In note 20 to the financial statements

Stock Exchanges

The Company’s shares are quoted on the AIM market of the
London Stock Exchange (symbol AXM} The Company’s share
quotation on the TSX Venture Exchange {symbol AXD) was
voluntanly terminated on 10 January 2013

Annual General Meeting

The Notice convening the Company's Annual Genaeral Meeting,
to be held on 20 June 2013, 1s set out on pages 37 to 39 of this
report Full details of the resolutions proposed at that meeting
may be found n the Notice

Corporate governance statement

A report on corporate governance and comphliance with
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code 1s set out
on page 11

Provision of information to auditor
In the case of each of the directors who are directors of the
Company at the date when this report 1s approved

e So far as they are indwidually aware, there 1s no relevant audit
information of which the Cempany’s auditor 1s unaware, and

* Each of the directors has taken all the steps that they ought
to have taken as a director to make themself aware of any
relevant audit nformation and to establish that the Company's
auditor is aware of the information

Auditor

PKF {UK} LLP have merged theur business into BDO LLP and
accordingly have signed their auditor's report 1n the name of the
merged firm A resolution to re-appoint BDO LLP as auditor of
the company will be put to the Annual General Meeting
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Statement of Directors' Responsibiittes

The directors are responsible for preparing the directors' report
and the financial staterments in accardance with applicable law
and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year Under that law the directors
have elected to prepare the group and company financiai
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Umion Under
company law the directars must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the group and company and of the
profit or loss of the group for that period The directors are also
required o prepare financial statements In accordance with the
rules of the London Stock Exchange for companies trading
securities on the Alternative Investment Market

In prepanng these financial statements, the directors are
required to

= select suttable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently,

* make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent,

+ state whether they have been prepared in accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the European Umion, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial
statements, and

* prepare the financial statements on the geing concern basis
unless 1t 1s inappropriate to presume that the company will
continue In business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explam the company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the requirements of
the Companies Act 2006 They are also responstble for
safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other iregularties

Website publication

The directors are responsible for ensunng the annual report

and the financial statements are made available on a website
Financial statements are published on the company’s website

in accordance with legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissermination of financial staterments, which
may vary from legistation in other junsdictions The mantenance
and integrity of the company's website 1s the responsibility of
the directors The directors' responsibility also extends to the
ongotng integrity of the finaneial statements contained therein

By Order of the Board

Terence Cross
Company Secretary

22 May 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report

to the Members of Alexander Mining Plc

We have audited the financial statements of Alexander Mining
plc for the year ended 31 December 2012 which comprise the
consclidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated and company balance
sheets, the consolidated and company statements of cash flows,
the consolidated and company statements of changes in equity
and the related notes The financial reperting framewaork that

has been applied in their preparation 1s applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted
by the Eurepean Union and, as regards the parernt company
financial statements, as applied in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act 2006

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body,
In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compames Act
2006 Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the company’s members those matters we are required
to state to thern in an auditor's report and for no other purpose
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and

the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fulty in the statement of directors’
responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give

a true and far view Qur responsibility 1s to audit and express an
opinion on the financial statements In accordance with applicable
law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and ireland)
Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditars

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A descrniption of the scope of an audit of financtal statements
15 provided on the Finaneial Reporting Council's website at
www frc org uk/auditscopeukprivate

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion

« the finangial statements give a true and far view of the state of
the group’s and the parent company's affars as at 31 December
2012 and of the group's loss for the year then ended,

the group financial statements have been properly prepared
In accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the Eurcpean Union,

the parent company financial statements have baen properly
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union and as appled in accordance with the
prowisions of the Companies Act 2006, and

the financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Separate opinion In retation to IFASs as issued by the IASB

As explained n note 2a to the group financial statements the
group, in addition to applying IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union, has also applied IFRSs as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB)

In our opinion the group financial statements comply with IFRSs
as 1ssued by the IASB

Emphasis of matter - going concern

In forming our opinion, which 1s not modsfied, we have considered
the adequacy of the disclosures made in note 2{a) to the financial
statemants concerning the requirement of the company to raise
further finance within the next twelve months in order to continue
its operations and to meet its commitments If the company

1S unable to secure such additional funding, this may have a
consequential impact on the company’s and the group's ability
to continue as a going cancern

The outcome of any corporate developments or fundraising
cannot presently be determined, and no adjustments to asset
carrying values that may be necessary should the company be
unsuccessful have been recognised in the financial statements
These conditions, along with the other matters explained In

note 2{a) to the financial statements, indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the
company’s and the group's ability to continue as a gong concern

Opinicn on other matters prescnbed by the Comparuies Act 2006
In our opinion the information given in the directors’ report for the
financial year for which the financial statements are prepared 1s
consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters
where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if,
In our epinion

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent
company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
recewved from branches not visited by us, or

* the parent company financial statements are not in agreement
with the accounting records and returns, or

= certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law
are not made, or

= we have not recewved all the infoermation and explanations
we require for our audit

Po i Ff

Jason Homewood {senior statutory auditor)

For and on behalf of BDO LLP, statutory auditor
London

United Kingdom

22 May 2013

BDO LLP 1s a imited liability partnership registered in Engtand and Wales
{with registered number 0C305127)
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Consolidated income statement

For tha year ended 31 December 2012

notes 2012 201
£'000 £000

Continuing operations
Revenue 29 20
Cost of sales - -

Gross profit 29 20
Administrative expenses (1,140) {1,386)
Research and development expenses {459) (464)
Operating loss 4 (1,570) (1,830)
Finance income 7 50 150
Finance cost 8 (17) -
Loss before taxation {1,537 {1,680}
Income tax expense g - -
Loss for the year from continuing operations (1,537) {1,680)
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 13 - 1,487
Loss for the year {1,537 {193)
Basic and diluted (loss)/profit per share (pence)
from continuing operations 10 (113)p {124)p
from continuing and discontinued operations 10 (113)p (0 14)p
from discontinued operations 10 - 110p
All compenents of profit or loss for the year are attnbutable to equity holders of the parent
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2012

notes 2012 2011

£'000 2'000

Loss for the year (1,537) {193}
Other comprehensive Income
Exchange differences realised on disposal of subsidiary - (1,403)

Total comprehensive loss for the year attnbutable to equity holders of the parent {1,537 {1,596)
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Consolidated balance sheet

As at 31 December 2012

notes 2012 2011

£'000 £'000
Assets
Property, plant and equipment 11 16 28
Total non-current assets 16 29
Trade and other recevables 14 169 661
Cash and cash equivalents 15 519 1,257
Total current assets 688 1,918
Total assets 704 1,947
Equity attnbutable to owners of the parent
Issued share capital 16 13,606 13,589
Share premium 186 12,043 11,850
Share option reserve 16 658 535
Translation reserve 16 {60) {60}
Accumulated losses (25,637) {24,100}
Total equity 510 1,824
Labilities
Current llabihttes
Trade and other payables 17 194 123
Total current liabilities 194 123
Total habihties 184 123
Total equity and habilites 704 1,947

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 22 May 2013
and were signed on ther behalf by

ke

M L Rosser
Director
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Company balance sheet
As at 31 December 2012

Company number 5357433 in England and Wales

notes 202 2011
£:000 £ 000

Assets
Property, plant and equipment 11 16 29
Total non-current assets 16 29
Trade and gther recevables 14 154 646
Cash and cash equivalents 15 518 1,256
Total current assets 672 1,902
Total assets 688 1,831
Equity attnbutable to owners of the parent
Issued share capital 16 13,606 13,599
Share premium 16 12,043 11,850
Share option reserve 16 558 835
Accumulated losses 16 (25,631) (24,163}
Total equity 576 1,821
Liabilities
Trade and other payables 17 12 110
Total current habilities 112 110
Total habilithes 112 110
Total equity and habilihes 688 1,931

Thase financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authonsed for 1ssue on 22 May 2013
and were signed on their behalf by

M L Rosser
Director
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31 December 2012

notes 2012 2011

£000 £'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Operating loss - contmuing operations {1,570) (1,830)
Depreciation and amortisation charge 13 8
Decrease in trade and other receivables 60 60
Increase / {decrease) in trade and other payables 7 (225)
Expenses settled through i1ssue of equity - ]
Share option charge 23 37
Net cash outflow from operating activities {1,403) {1,904)
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 17 5
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment - (37}
Proceeds from sale of subsidiary 465 736
Net cash inflow from investing activities 482 704
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from the issue of share capital 200 -
Net cash inflow from financing activities 200 -
Net decrease In cash and cash equivalents (721} {1,200)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginrung of pernod 1,257 2,454
Exchange differences a7 3
Cash and cash equivalents at end of penod i85 519 1,257
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Company statement of cash flows

For the year ended 31 December 2012

notes 2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Operating loss (921) (1,176}
Depreciation and amortisation charge 13 8
Decrease / {increase} in trade and other receivables 60 (44)
Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables 2 {164)
Shares issued in payment of expenses - 50
Share option charge 23 37
Inter-company recharges (10) (10}
Net cash outflow from operating activittes (833) {1,299}
Cash flows from investing activities
Amounts remitted to subsidiary companies {(570) {607)
Interest received 17 5
Proceeds from sale of subsichary 465 B33
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment - 37)
Net cash (outfiow} / inflow from investing activities {38) 194
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from the i1ssue of share caprtal 200 -
Net cash inflow from financing activities 200 -
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 721) (1,105}
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of penod 1,256 2,356
Exchange differences (17 5
Cash and cash equivalents at end of penod 15 518 1,256
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GConsolidated statament of changes in equity

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 December 2012

Share
Share Share Merger option Translation Accumulated Total
capital prermium reserve reserve reserve losses equity
£'000 2’000 £ 000 £'000 £'000 27000 £'000
At 1 January 2011 13,549 11,850 (2,487) 563 1,343 (21,485) 3,333
Accumulated loss for penod - - - - - (193} (193)
Realisation of foreign exchange gains
upon sale of subsidiary - - - - (1,403) - {1.403)
Total comprehensive income for the penod
attributable to equity holders of the parent - - - - {1,403) {183} (1,596)
Share option costs - - - 37 - - 37
Share options cancelled - - - (65) - 65 -
Transfer from merger reserve - - 2,487 - - (2,487) -
Shares 1ssued 50 - - - - - 50
At 31 December 2011 13,599 11,850 - 535 (60) (24,100) 1,824
Accumulated loss for penod - - - - - {1,837) {1,537}
Total comprehensive income for the penod
attnbutabtle to equity holders of the parent - - - - {1,537} {1,537
Share option costs - - - 23 - - 23
Shares 1ssued 7 193 - - - - 200
At 31 December 2012 13,606 12,043 - 558 {60) {25,637) 510
Company statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 December 2012
Share
Share Share option Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve |osses equity
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £'000 £'000
At 1 January 2011 13,549 11,850 563 (22,672) 3,280
Accumulated loss for period - - - (1.556) {1,556)
Total comprehensive income for the penod
attributable to equity holders of the parent - - - {1,556} (1,5586)
Share option costs - - 37 - 37
Share options cancelled - - {65} 65 -
Shares 1ssued 50 - - 50
At 31 December 2011 13,599 11,850 535 {24,163) 1,821
Accumnulated loss for penod - - - (1,468) {1,468)
Total comprehensive iIncome for the penod
attributable to equity holders of the parent - - - (1,468) {1,468)
Share option costs - - 23 - 23
Shares 1ssued 7 193 - - 200
At 31 December 2012 13,606 12,043 558 (25,631) 576
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Notes to the financial statements

For the vear ended 31 December 2012

1 General Information

Alexander Miring ple {the ‘Company’) 1s a public imited
company incorporated and domuciled in England and (ts shares
are traded on the AIM Market of the Londen Stock Exchange
The Company's share guotation on the TSX Venture Exchange
{symbol AXD} was voluntarily terminated on 10 January 2013
Alexander Mining plc 1s a holding company of a group of
companies {the ‘Group'), the principal activities of which are the
commercialisation of the Group's propretary mineral processing
technologies, either through licensing to thurd parties and/or the
acquisttion of equity stakes in amenable deposits

These censolidated financial statements were approved for
1ssue by the Board of Directors on 22 May 2013

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation

of these financial statements are set out below These policies
have been applied consistently to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated

a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS) in force at
the reporting date and their interpretations issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board {'IASB') as adopted
for use within the European Union and with IFRS and their
interpretations 1ssued by the IASB

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts In the financial statements The areas involving a higher
degree of jJudgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
or estimates are significant to the financial statements, are
disclosed in note 2 (o)

A separate Income statement for the parent company has not
been presented, as permitted by section 408 of the Comparnies
Act 20086

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with IFRS
and interpretations in force at the reporting date The Company
has not adopted any standards or interpretations in advance of
the required implementation dates

Going Concern

Based on a review of the Group's budgets and cash flow
forecasts, the directors have identified that if current and near-
term corporate development epportunities are unsuccessiul in
providing adequate funding then the Company will need to raise
finance within the next twelve months in order to continue its
operations and to meet its commitments

In common with many mining, exploration and intellectual
property development companies, the Company needs to

raise finance for its activities in discrete tranches to finance its
activities for imited penods The Directors are confident that
the Company currently has a range of corporate development
opportunittes which could include significant funding cutcomes
and moreover that, If necessary, any further funding can be
raised as and when required On this basis, they have concluded
that it 15 appropriate to draw up the financial statements on the
going concern basis However, there can be no certainty that
either development opportunities or alternative funding will

be secured in the necessary timescales and this indicates

the existence of a matenal uncertainty that may cast significant
doubt on the ability of the company and the group to continue
as a going concern The financial statements do not include
any adjustments, particularly in respect of fixed assets,
Investments, receivables and provisions for winding up which
could be necessary if the Company and Group ceasad to be

a going concern

Standards, Amendments and Interpretations 1ssued but not
yet effective

No Standards and Interpretations that have been ssued but
are not yet effective, and that are available for early application,
have been applied by the group in these financial statements
There are no Standards or Interpretations issued, but not yet
effective, which are expected to have a matenai effect on the
financial statements in the future

b} Basis of consclidation

1} Subsidianes

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidianes} made up to 31 December each year
Control 1s recognised where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an investes entity
S0 as to obtain benefits from its activities

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidianes to bnng the accounting policies
Into Iine with those used by the Group

n) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and any unrealised gans and losses or
income and expenses ansing from intra-group transactions are
elimmated in preparing the consolidated financial statements

) Business combinations

Business combinations made prior to 1 January 2006 were
accounted for in accordance with the relevant UK GAAP at

the time The transitional requirements of IFRS 1 allowed
prospective application for all business combinations
subsequent to the transition date (1 January 2006) Accordingly
such combinations were not re-stated in accordance with that
standard Reserve amounts resulting from such transactions
were released in 2011 when the related subsidiary companies
were disposed of

For subsequent business combinations, the assets, iabilities
and contingent rabilities of a subsidiary are measured at ther
farr value at the date of acquisition Any excess of the cost of
the acquisition over the fair valuas of the identifiable net assets
acquired 1S recognised as goodwill, which 1s subsequently
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tested for imparrment rather than amortised If the cost of
the acquisition Is less than the farr value of net assets of the
subsidiary acquired, the difference Is recognised directly in
the Income statement

Tha results of subsidianies acquired or disposed of during the
yaar are mcluded n the conseclidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropnate

c) Foreign currency

The Company's functional and presentational currency i1s Sterling
rounded 10 the nearest thousand and s the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Company operates

1) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction Monetary
assets and habilities denominated in foreign currencies at the
balance sheet date are translated to Sterling at the foreign
exchange rate ruling at that date Foreign exchange differences
arising on translation are recognised in the income statement

n} Financial statements of foreign operations

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
overseas operations that do not have a Sterling functional
currency are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the
balance sheet date income and expense items are translated at
the average exchange rate for the period Exchange differences
anising are recognised in other comprehensive income through
the Group’s translation reserve Such translation differences are
recogmised In the income statement in the penod in which the
operation s disposed of

i} Net investment in foreign operations

Exchange differences arising from the translation of the net
investrnent in foreign operations are recognised in cther
comprehensive incoms through the Group’s transtation reserve
They are released into the income statement upon disposal of
the foreign operation

d) Property, plant and equipment

1) Owned assets

Hems of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation (see below) and imparment losses
(see note 2e) below)

1) Subsequent costs

The Group recogruses in the carrying amount of an item of
property, plant and equipment the cost of replacing part of
such an item when that cost is incurred if it 1s probable that the
future economic benefits associated with the itern will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reltably
All other costs are recogmnised in the incorne statement as

an expense as incurred

i) Depreciation

Deprectation 1s charged to the income statement on a straight-
Iine basis over the estimated useful lives of each tem of property,
plant and equipment Land 1s not depreciated The estimatad
useful ives of all other categornes of assets are three years

The resicdual valug 1s assessed annually Gains and losses on
disposal are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying
amount and are included in the Income statement

e) Impairment

1) Whenever events or changes In circumstance indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable the asset
15 reviewed for imparment An asset’s carrying value 15 written
down to its estimated recoverable amount (being the higher of
the fair value less costs to sell and valus in use) If that is less
than the asset’s carrying amount

n} Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating urut} 1s Increased to
the revisad estimata of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impawment
loss been recognised for the asset {or cash-generating unit} in
prior years A reversal of an impairment loss 1s recogrised In
profit or logs for the period

f) Financial instruments

1) Investments

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less
provision for imparment

u) Trade and other receivables
Trade and other recevables are not interest bearng and are
stated at amortised cost

) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks, other short-term tughly hquid investments
with anginal maturiies of three months or less, and bank
averdrafts Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in
current habilities on the balance sheet

) Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are not interest beanng and are stated
at amortised cost

g) Share based payment transactions

Directors, senior executives and consultants of the Group have
been granted options to subscribe for ordinary shares All
optians are equity settled The fair value of services received in
return for share options granted 1s measured by reference to the
tair value of the share options granted, at date of grant, and this
15 expensed on a straight ine basis over the estimated vesting
penod This estirmate 15 determined using an appropriate
valuation mode! considering the effects of the vesting
condiions, expected exercise peried and the payment

of dividends by the Company

Shares 1ssued in settlement of expenses are recogrised
at the far value of the services receved

h) Operating lease payments
Payments made under operating leases are recognised on
a straight-line basis over the term of the lease
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1} Share capital
The Company’s ordinary shares are classified as equity

1) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obhgation as a result of past events, it 1s more likely
than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated

K) Revenue

Revenue comprises the far value of the consideration received
or recelvable for the prowision of services to or from external
customers (net of vatue-added tax and other sales taxes)

Sale of testwork services

The group sells services to other miming companies These
services are generally provided on fixed-price contracts, with
contract terms usually less than one year Revenue Is recognised
under the percentags-cf-completion method, based on the
services performed to date as a percentage cf the total services
to be performed

Royalty income
Royalty income 1s recognised on an accruals basis in
accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements

l) Research and development costs

Research costs are recognised in the income statement as

an expense as incurred Davelopment costs are recognised

In the inceme statement as an expense as incurred unless the
development protect meets specific critera for deferral and
amortisation No development costs have been deferred to date
because there 1s insuffictent information at the balance sheet
date to quantify the expected future economic benefits from
the propretary leaching technologies

m} Taxation

The charge for taxation i1s based on the profit or loss for the
year and takes into account deferred tax Deferred tax s the tax
expected to be payable or recoverable on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corrasponding tax bases usad in
the caomputation of taxable profit or loss, and 1s accounted for
using the balance sheet method

Deferred tax assets are only recogrused to the extent that

it 1s probable that future taxable profit will be availlable in the
foreseeable future against which the temporary differences
can be utiised

n) Segment information
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker

The Chief Operating Decision Maker, responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors

o} Cntical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements under the principles of
IFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported

amounts of assets and liabilties, ncome and expenses The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
expenence and vanous other factors that are beheved to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of maling the jJudgements about carrying values of
assets and habilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources Actual results may differ from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis Revisions te accounting estimates are recegnised
in the period in which the estmate (s revised if the revision
affects only that penod, or in the penod of tha rewsion and future
penods if the revision affects both current and future penods

information about such judgements and esttmates 13 contained
in the accounting policies and/cr the notes to the financial
statements and the key areas are summarnsed below The area
of judgement that has the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements i1s

* Estimation of share based payment costs - notes 2(g) and 21

3 Segmental information

The following information i1s gwven about the Group’s reportable
segments

The Chief Operating Decision Maker is the Board of Directors
The Board reviews the Group's internal reporting in order

to assess performance of the business Management has
determined the operating segment based on the reports
reviewed by the Board

The Board considers that, since the sale of Argentina Gold
Group bimited during 2011, there remains only one operating
segment This incorporates similar activities and services,
namely Head Office, including the development and
management of intellectual property nghts The results and
assets of Peruvian operations are deemed to be immatenal and
are included within the remaining single segment The analysis
has been prepared on the basis that prevailled and was reported
to the Board until 31 December 2012

As the group 15 in the early stages of developing and licensing
a new product, the Board assesses the performance of the
business based on the segment’s Earnings Before Interest,
Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation (EBITDA), and overall loss
before tax

The Head Office and Intellectual Property segment recognises
all costs and revenues This segment is not further sub-divided
to different geographical regions due to ts knowledge and
services being offered to a bread geographical spread of
clients, often indirectly through muttinational groups

As the company has only a single activity and there 15 also only
one geographical segment, the disclosures for this segment
have already been given in these financial statements
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4 Operating loss

Operating loss 1s stated after charging/(crediting)

2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Depreciation 13 B
Exchange loss/(gan} on foreign currency 17 {3)
Operating lease expense 33 33
Share option charge (note 20) 23 37
Shares 1ssued In payment of expenses - a0
Research and development expenses 459 464
5 Auditor’s remuneration
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Fees payable to the Group's auditor for the audit of the Group’s annual financial statements 19 19
Tax services 3 5
22 24
6 Staff costs and directors’ emoluments
Other
Duectars' remuneration 1s set out below Annual salary Faes benefits Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
2012
M L Sutcliffe 191 - 7 198
M L Rosser 127 - 2 129
R O Davey - 25 - 25
J 8 Bunyan - 40 1 41
E M Morfett - 25 - 25
318 90 10 418
2011
M L Sutchife 188 - 6 192
M L Rosser 125 - 2 127
R O Davey - 25 25
J 8 Bunyan - 40 1 41
E M Morfett - 25 25
3n 80 9 410
The aggregate staff costs for the year were as follows 2012 201
£000 £'000
Directors' remuneration 418 410
Other staff wages and salares 296 248
Social security costs 26 28
Share based payments 23 ar
763 723

On average, excluding non-executwve directors, the group employed 3 techrucal staff members (2011 3} and 2 administration staff (2011 2)
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7 Finance income

2012 2011
£'000 £°000
Unwinding of discount on other receivables 33 142
Interest on short term bank deposits 1 5
Interest on receivable from sale of subsidiary 16 -
Exchange differences on foreign currency - 3
50 150

8 Finance cost
2012 201
£'000 £'000
Exchange differences on foreign currency (17 -

9 Income taxes

No fiabiity to income taxes anses in the penod

The current tax charge for the penod differs from the credit resulting from the loss before tax at the standard rate of corporation tax

in the UK The differences are explained below

2012 2011
£000 £°000
Loss before tax {1,538} {1,680)
Cument tax at 24 5% (2011 26%) (377) {437
Effects of
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 162 120
Qualifying depreciation in excess of capital allowances on which no deferred tax has been provided 2 -
Unrelieved tax losses ansing in the period 213 317
Income tax expense - -
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Unrecognised deferred tax assets
Cumulative tax losses 1,448 1,569
Unrelieved exploration expenditure ansing in overseas subsidiarias 165 165
Accelerated caputal allowances 5 4
Unrecognised deferred tax asset at end of penod 1,618 1,738

Defarred tax assets camed forward have not been recognised in the accounts because there 1s currently insufficient evidence of the

tirmuing of suitable future taxable profits against which they can be recovered
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10 Loss per share

The calculation of loss per share 1s based on the weighted average number of shares in 1ssue in the year to 31 December 2012 of
136,205,121 {31 December 2011 135,797,501) and computed on the respective profit and loss figures as follows

£'000
(Loss) - continuing operations {1,537}
{Loss) - continuing and discentinued operations {1,537)

Profit - discontinued operations -

2012
Par share

(113)p
113p

£ 000

(1,680)
(193
1,487

2011
Per share

(1 24)p
{0 14)p
110p

There 1s no difference between the diluted loss per share and the basic loss per share presented Share options granted to employees
could potentially dilute basic earmings per share in the future, but were not included In the calculation of diluted earnings per share as

they are anti-dilutive for the period presented

11 Property, plant and equipment

Office equipment Leasehold Motor

and furniture improvements vehicles Total
Company and Group £'000 £'000 £°000 £'000
Cost
As at 1 January 2011 45 35 - 80
Additions 2 - 35 37
Disposals {10) - - {10}
As at 31 December 2011 37 35 35 107
As at 31 December 2012 37 35 35 107
Depreciation
As at 1 January 2011 (45) {(35) - {80)
Charged In year N - (N {8)
Cisposals 10 - - 10
As at 31 December 2011 (36) (35) ] (78)
Charged in year - - {13} {13}
As at 31 December 2012 (36) (35) {20) (91)
Net book value
As at 31 December 2012 1 - 15 16
As at 31 December 2011 1 - 28 29

As at 1 January 2011 -
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12 Investments
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£'000 £'000 £000 2000

Subsidiary undertakings (a) - - - -

{a) Company subsidiary undertakings
As at 31 December 2012, the Group owned interests in the following subsidiary undertakings, which are included i the consolidated
financial statements

Name Holding Business Activity Country of Incorporation
Metaleach Limited 100% Leaching technology development  Bntish Virgin islands

Mohnetes (BVI) Limited 100% Investment holding British Virgin Islands
Compania Minera Molinetes SAC! 100% Exploration Peru

Alexander Mining Katanga s prl 100% Dormant Democratic Republic of Congo
Alexander Mining Technologies Limited 100% Dormant British Virgin Islands

' Owned by Molinetes (BVI) Limited

The Company’s subsidiary, Alexander Gold Group Limited, was sold on 28 February 2011 - see note 13 for further details

13 Discontinued operations

On 28 February 2011, the Company completed, as planned, the sale of its entire interest 1n its subsidiary, Alexander Gold Group
Limited, for the sum of US$2,200,000 US$400,000 was recewed on execution of the legally binding sale and purchase agreement and
18 monthly payments of US$100,000 each became due, commencing in March 2011

Final payment of the consideration receivable was completed on 28 February 2013

A net profit for the year attnbuted to the discontinued business amounted to Nil (2011 £1,487,000), compnised as follows

2012 2011

£000 £ 000

Gain on disposal of discontinued operation - 84
Realisation of translation reserve transferred to Income Statement on disposal of the subsidiary (IAS 21) - 1,403
Profit for the year on discontinued operation - 1,487

Other comprehensive income relating to the disposal group

The cumulative amount transferred to translation reserve in respect of the disposal group amounted to a credit of £1,403,000 at

31 December 2010 This translation reserve was realised by its transfer to the Income Statement on disposal of the subsidiary dunng
the year ended 31 December 2011
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14 Trade and other receivables

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011
£'000 £000 £'000 £:000

Current assets
Trade recevables 15 15 - -
Other receivables 127 595 127 585
Other taxes and social secunty 2 4 2 4
Prepayments and accrued income 25 47 25 47
169 661 154 646

Cther receivables includes £101,000 (2011 £534,000) in respect of the remaining instalments due from the sale of the Company's
subsidiary, Alexander Gold Group Limited The remaning mstalments of £101,000 were paid by 28 February 2013 Amounts due to
the Company from its subsidiary companies have been fully provided for as detailed in note 23

15 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, demand deposits and short term deposits Cash and cash equivalents included in
the cash flow statement comprise the following balance sheet amounts

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 20Mm

£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Cash on hand and dermand deposits 519 1,257 518 1,256
16 Share capital

2032 2011

Issued and fully paid ordinary shares with a nomunal value of 0 1p (2011 10 Op)
Number of shares 142,653,209 135,986,542
Nomnal vatue (£) 142,654 13,598,654
Issued and fully paid deferred shares with a nominal vaiue of 9 Sp
Number of shares 135,986,542 -
Nominal value (£} 13,462,667 -

Detatls of share options 1ssued dunng the year and outstanding at 31 December 2012 are set out in note 20

On 14 June 2012, at a General Meeting of the Company, shareholders approved capital restructure proposals whereby each of the
existing 1ssued shares of 10p each in the capital of the Company were subdivided and converted into one new ordinary share of 0 1p
and one deferred share of 9 9p

The new ordinary shares have the same nights and benefits of the previously existing ordinary shares Each fully pard ordinary share
cames one vote per share and the nght to dvidends The number of new ordinary shares in issue following the capital re-orgarusation
was unchanged from the number of existing crdinary shares in issue tmmediately prior to the capital re-organisation
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The deferred shares will not be admitted to trading on AIM, have only very imited nights on a return of capital and are effectively
valueless and non-transferable The Directers consider that the deferred shares have no effect on the respective economic interests

of the shareholders Mo share certficates have been issued for the deferred shares

All Authonised Capital imitations were removed by way of the adoption of New Articles of Association at the General Meeting of the

Company held on 14 June 2012

Changes in 1ssued Share Capital and Share Premium
For the year ended 31 December 2012

Number of shares Share Capital  Share premium Total

Ordinary shares £000 £'000 £'000

Balance as at 1 January 2012 135,086,542 13,589 11,850 25,449

Transfer to deferred share capital on 14 Jure 2012 - {13,483} - {(13,463)

Shares 1ssued for cash - 17 December 2012 6,666,667 7 183 200

Balance at 31 December 2012 142,653,209 143 12,043 12,186
All of the above shares were 1ssued to finance the ordinary activities of the Group

Number of Deferred

deferred shares share capital

Deferred shares £ 000

Balance at 1 January 2012 - -

Transfer from ordinary share capital on 14 June 2012 135,886,542 13,463

Balance at 31 December 2012 135,986,542 13,463

Capital and reserves

The Consolidated and Company statements of changes in equity are set out on page 22 of this report

* A merger reserve at 31 December 2010 arose from the Company’s acquisition of Alexander Gold Group Limited on 22 March 2005
The merger reserve balance was transferred to accumulated losses upon the sale of Alexander Gold Group on 28 February 2011

* The share option reserve includes a credit based on the fair value of share options 1ssued since 7 November 2002 that had not
vested by 1 January 2006 Details of share options outstanding at 31 December 2012 are set out in note 20

* The translation reserve compnses all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations that do not have a Sterling functional currency That part of the reserve that related to the operations of Alexander Gold
Group Limited was transferred to the Income Statement upon the sale of that subsidiary on 28 February 2011

The Company has taken advantage of the exermption permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2008 and has not presented its

own income statement

17 Trade and other payables

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Trade payables 26 38 26 36
Other taxes and social security 22 ] 22 9
Accruals and deferred income 146 78 64 65
194 123 112 110

Accruals and deferred income includes £83,000 {2011 nil) owed to directars of the Company {see note 23)
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18 Financial nsk management

The Group's and Company’s principal financial assets compnse cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and other receivables
In addition, the Company's financial assets include amounts due from subsidianes The Group's and Company's financial habilities
compnse trade payables, other payables, and accrued expenses

All of the Group’s and Company's financial habilities are measured at amortised cost The Group's and Gompany’s financial assets are
classified as loans and recevables

The Beard of Directors determines, as reguired, the degree to which it 1s appropriate to use financial Instruments, commodity contracts
or other hedging contracts or techrigques to mitigate financial nsks The main nsks for which such instruments may be appropnate are
interest rate risk, liquidity sk and foreign currency nisk, each of which i1s discussed below All non-routine transactions require Board
approval Dunng 2012 the Group has not used denvative financia! instruments

The Board consider that the nisk components detatted below apply to both Group and Company Financial risks are managed at Group
rather than Company level

Credit nsk

Credit nsk refers to the risk that the Group's financial assets will be impaired by the default of a third party The Company’s primary
exposure 1s to credit nsk on the debtor of £101,000 (2011 £534,000} referred to in note 14, in respect of the sale of its subsidiary,
Alexander Gold Group Limsted The Group 1s further exposed to credit nsk on its cash and cash equivalents as set out in note 15, with
additional nsk attached to other recevables set out In note 14 Credit sk 1s managed by ensuring that surplus funds are deposited
only with well-established finaneial institutions of high quality credit standing The majority of recewables risk 1s mitigated by the
holding of mortgage charges over fixed properties to secure payment of the £101,000 receivable due from the buyers of the Group's
Argentingan subsidiary

At 31 December 2012 the Group had no significant trade receivables The Group’s focus on commercialising its technologies may
result in significant trade recevables during 2013, the credit nsk on which will be managed by assessing the credit quality of each
customer, taking INto account its financial position and any cther relevant factors

Foreign currency nsk

Foreign currency risk refers to the nsk that the value of a financial commitment, recogrnised asset or hability will fluctuate due to
changes in foreign currency rates The Group reports its financial results (n Sterhing and 1s therefore exposed to foreign currency risk
as a result of financial assets, future transactions and investments in foreign companies denominated 1n currencies other than Sterling

Exchange gains and losses on financial assets or future transactions are recognised directly in profit or loss A proportion of the
Group's costs are incurred In US Dollars, Australian Dollars, New Zealand Dollars, Eures and Peruvian Nuevo Soles Accordingly,

movements in the Sterling exchange rate against these currencies could have a detnmental effect on the Group's results and financial
condition

Foreign exchange nsk 1s managed by mamtaining some cash deposits in currencies other than Sterling The table below shows the
currency profiles of cash and cash equivalents

2012 2011

£'000 £ 000

Sterling 232 515
US Dollars 244 662
Australian Dollars as 78
New Zealand Dellars 8 2

519 1,257
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The table below shows an analys:s of net monetary assets and habilities by the Sterling functional currency of the Group

Total
2012 £'000
Balances denominated in
Sterling 169
US Dollars 360
Australian Dollars (10} '
New Zealand Dollars {49)
Other currencies (2
468
Total
2011 £'000
Balances denominated in
Sterling 498
US Dollars 1,224
Australian Dollars 72
New Zealand Dollars 2
Other currencies 1
1,795

Commodity pnce nsk

Commodity price risk is the nsk that the Group's future earnings will be adversely impacted by changes in the market pnces of
commodities The Group IS exposed to commodity price risk as its future revenues may be determined by reference to market prices

of metals

In addition to any new projects acquired by the Group, future revenue streams may include royalties from the development of third
party assets The Group's revenue from such royalty streams will be dependent cn future commeodity prices, both in terms of the
absolute value of the royalty and the commodity price required for the successful economic development of such assets

Liquidhty nsk

Liquidity risk relates to the ability of the Group to meet future obligations and financial labiliies The Group monitors its nsk to a
shortage of funds using cash flow models, which consider existing financial assets, labilities and projected cash inflows and outflows

from operations

The table below sets out the matunty profile of financial habilities at 31 December

Bue in less than one month

Due between one and three months
Due between three months and one year

Group Company
201 2012 2011
£'000 £000 £'600
84 59 71 |
6 31 8
24 23 24
114 113 10

To date the Group has relted upon shareholder funding of its activities Development of intellectual property, the acquisition of new
opportunities, or the recovery of royalty income from third party assets, may be dependent upon the Group's ability to obtain further
financing through joint ventures, equity or debt financing, corporate developments or other means Although the Group has been
successful in the past in obtaining equity financing there can be no assurance that the Group will be able to obtain adequate financing

in the future or that the terms of such financing will be favourable

Based on a review of the Group’s budgets and cash flow forecasts, the directors have dentified that the Company needs to raise
finance within the next twelve months in order to continue its operations and to meet its commitments
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18 Financial risk management continued

In commen with many mining, exploration and intellectual property development companies, the Company needs to raise finance for
its activities in discrete tranches to finance 1its activities for Imited penods The Directors are confident that the Company currently has
a range of corporate development opporturities which could include significant funding cutcomes and mareover that, if necessary, any
further funding can be raised as and when required

Interest rate nsk profile of financial assets

Interest rate nsk is the risk that the value of a financial nstrument or cash flows associated with the instrument will fluctuate due
to changes in market interest rates Interest rate nsk arises from interest bearing financial assets and habilities that the Group uses
Interest bearing assets compnse cash and cash equivalents It s the Group’s policy to settle trade payables within the credit terms
allowed and the Group does not therefore incur interest on overdue balances

At 31 December 2012 the Group had Sterling denominated short term deposits which attracted interest as follows

2012 2011
Deposit Interest rate Deposit Interest rate
£'000 £'000
Sterling deposits 2 050% 311 0 50%

The value of the Group’s assets at 31 December 2012 and the result for the penod would not be materially affected by changes in
Interest rates

Fauir values of financial assets and habihties
It 1s the directors’ opinion that the carrying values of the Group’s and the Company’s financial assets and habilities as at 31 December
2012 and 31 Decemnber 2011 are not matsnally different from therr farr values They have therefore not been shown separately

19 Capital management

The Group's objective when managing capital 1s to safeguard the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, and develop its
activities to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders

The Group's capital structure compnses all components of equity § ¢ ordinary share caprtal, share premium, retained earnings and
other reserves) At 31 December 2012 the Group had no debt When considering the future capital requirements of the Group and the
potential to fund specific project development via debt the directors caonsider the nisk characteristics of afl of the underlying assets in
assessing the optimal capital structure

20 Share based payments

The Group operates an Executive Share Option Plan, under which directors, senior executives and consultants have been granted
options to subscribe for ordinary shares All options are share settled The number and weighted average exercise prices of share
options are as follows

2012 2011
Waighted Weighted

average Number of average Number of

axercise price optlons axercise prnce options

Qutstanding at the beginning of the penod 101p 10,175,000 10 1p 9,975,000
Granted duning the penod - - 10 0p 1,250,000
Cancelled during the period - - 10 0p (1,050,000)
Outstanding at the end of the penod 101p 10,175,000 101p 10,175,000

Exercisable at the end of the penod 101p 9,308,332 10 1p 7,861,665




Alexander Mining plc

Annual Report & Accounts 2012

Share options outstanding at 31 December 2012 had a weighted average exercise price of 10 1 pence {2011 10 1 pence} and a
weighted average contractual Iife of 5 4 years (2011 6 4 years) To date no share options have been exercised There are no market

based vesting conditions attaching to any share options outstanding at 31 December 2012

At 31 December 2012 the total number of options over ordinary shares cutstanding was as follows

Weighted
Exercise penod average
Number  exercise price
Vested
Exercisable until 2015 2,250,000 10 0p
Exercisable unti) 2016 525,000 10 Op
Exercisable until 2017 750,000 10 0p
Exercisable until 2018 2,300,000 10 Op
Exercisable until 2019 2,750,000 10 Op
Exercisable until 2020 316,666 12 3p
Exercisable until 2021 416,666 10 0p
Exercisable at the period end 9,308,332 10 1p
Not yet vested
Exercisable between 2013 and 2020 33,334 13 Sp
Exercizable between 2013 and 2021 833,334 10 Op
10,175,000 10 1p

The fair value of services received in return for share options granted 1s measured by reference to the far value of the share options
granted This estimate 1s based on a Black-Scholes model which i1s considered most appropnate considering the effects of the vesting

conditions, expected exercise peniod and the payment of dvidends by the Company

21 Commitments

Future commitments for the Group under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

2012 2011

£000 £'000

Payable withun one year 3 33
Payable between one and two years 37 -
68 33

The Group does not sub-lease any of its leased premises Payments under operating leases recognised in aperating loss in the perod

are set out In note 4

22 Contingent habilities

There were no contingent liabilities at 31 December 2012 or 31 December 2011

35
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23 Related parties

The Group's investments in subsidiaries have been disclosed in note 12

During the period, Alexander Mining ple entered into the following transactions with other group companies

Sale of goods

and services Amounts owed by group companies
AL At
2mz2 2011 1 January Increase Provisions 31 December
2012 n period in penod 2012
£'000 £'000 £°000 £'000 £ 000 £'000
Molinetes BVI Limited - - - 4 4 -
Metaleach Limited 10 10 - 576 {576) -
10 10 - 580 {580} -

Amounts owed by related parties are unsecured, interest-free, and have no fixed terms of repayment The balances will be settled in
cash No guarantees have been given or received

Detalls of directors’ emoluments are set out In note 6 Compensation for key management personnel was as follows

2012 2011

£'000 £'000

Short-term employee benefits 675 €617
National Insurance contnbutions 23 25
Other benefits 10 9
Share-based payments 18 35
726 686

Dunng the penod, Metaleach Limited paid £29,000 (2011 £15,000) to consulting metallurgist Or Kathenne Mallat in respect of
AmmlLeach® testwork supervision Dr Mallat 1s the spouse of Garry Jehnston, a senior Group employee

During the period Alexander Mining plc received £12,000 (2011 £3,000} from Equest Limited in respect of office services provided to
Glabal Oil Shale Limited Mr Matthew Sutcliffe 1s a director of both Alexander Mining plc and Globat Oil Shale Limited

At 31 December 2012, the following amounts were owed to directors of the company in respect of deferred payments of directors’
fees These amounts are included in Trade and Other Payables {note 17)

Mr M L Sutcliffe £58,000 (2011 nil}
Mr M L Rosser £25,000 (2011 nil}

24 Post balance sheet events

On 10 January 2013 the Company voluntanly termmated its listing and share quotation on the TSX Venture Exchange
On 28 January 2013 the Company 1ssued 416,842 new ordinary 0 1p shares, at 4 75p per share, in payment for £19,800 of expenses

On 2 April 2013 the Company 1ssued for cash 18,775,000 new ordinary O 1p shares at 4 Op per share, raising £751,000, for general
working capital purposes

On 16 May 2013 the Company issued for cash 6,666,667 new ordinary 0 1p shares at 3 Op per share, raising £200,000, for general
working capital purposes

On 16 May 2013 the Company 1ssued 618,000 new ordinary O 1p shares in payment of expenses
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

{incarporated and registered in England and Wales under number §357433)

Notice 1s hereby given that the Annual Genera! Meeting of
Alexander Mining plc will be held at the offices of Northland
Capital Partners Limited, 60 Gresham Street, London EC2V
788, at 10 30am on Thursday 20th June 2013 in order to
consider and, if thought fit, pass resolutions 1 to 6 as ordinary
resolutions and resolution 7 as a special resolution

Ordinary Resolutions

1 Torecewve, consider and adopt the Directors’ Report and
Accounts for the year ended 31st December 2012, together
with the Auditer’s report thereon

2 Tore-elect as a director Mr M L Sutchffe who retires by
rotation in accordance with Article 93 of the Company’s
Articles of Association and who, being eligible, offers
himself for re-election

3 To re-elect as a diractar Mr R O Davey who retires by rotation
In accorcdance with Article 83 of the Company's Articles of
Association and who, being eligible, offers himself for re-
election

4 To re-elect as a director Mr A M Clegg who, having been
elected since the previous Annual General Meeting, retires
in accordance with Article 88 1 of the Company’s Articles
of Association and who, being eligible, offers himself for
re-election

5 To re-appoint BDO LLP of Farrningdon Place, 20 Farringdon
Road, London EC1M 3APR, as auditors of the Company and
to authonse the Directors to deterrmine their remuneration

6 That the Directors be generally and unconditionally
authorised pursuant to Section 551 of the Companies Act
2006 {the ‘2006 Act') to allot shares in the Company or grant
nghts to subscnbe for or to caonvert any security into shares
in the Company (‘Rights’} up to an aggregate nomunal
amount of £100,000 provided that this authority shall, unless
previously revoked or vaned by the Company in general
masting, expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company following the date of the passing
of this resolution or (if earlier) 12 months from the date of
passing this resolution, but so that the directors may before
such expiry make an offer or agreement which would or
might require relevant secunties to be allotted after such
expiry and the directors may allot relevant securities n
pursuance of that offer or agreement as if the authonty
hereby conferred had not expired

This authority 18 1in substitution for all previous authorities
conferred on the Directors in accordance with Section 80
of the Companies Act 1985, or Section 551 of the 2006 Act

Special Resolution

7 That, subject to the passing of Resolution 6, the Directors be
given the general power to allot equity secunities {as defined
by Section 560 of the 2006 Act) for cash, either pursuant to
the authonty conferred by Resolution 6 or by way of a sale
of treasury shares, as If Section 561(1) of the 2006 Act did
not apply to any such allotment, provided that this power
shall be imited to

71  the allotment of equity securities in connection with an
offer by way of a nghts issue

711 to the holders of ordinary shares in propertion (as nearty
as may be practicable) to ther respective holdings, and

712 toholders of other equity secunties as required by the
nghts of those secunties or as the Directors otherwise
consider necessary, but subject to such exclusions or
other arrangements as the Board may deem necessary
or expedient in relation to treasury shares, fractional
entitlements, record dates, legal or practical problems
in or under the laws of any territory of the requirements
of any regulatory body or stock exchange, and

72  the allotment (otherwise than pursuant to paragraph 7 1
above) of equity secunties up to an aggregate nominal
amount of £100,000

The power granted by this resolution will unless renewed,
varied or revoked by the Company, expire at the conclusion
of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company
following the date of the passing of this resolution or (if
earlier) 12 months from the date of passing this resolution,
save that the Company may, before such expiry make offers
or agreements which would or might require equity secunties
to be allotted after such expiry and the Directors may allot
equity secunties in pursuance of any such offer or agreement
notwithstanding that the power conferred by this resolution
has expired

This resolution revokes and replaces all unexercised powers
previously granted to the Diractors to allot equity secunties
as If either secticn 89(1) of the Comparnies Act 1985 or
section 561(1) of the 2006 Act did not apply, but without
prejudice to any allotment of equity securities already

made or agreed to be made pursuant to such authorities

The Board of Alexander Mining plc recommends that
shareholders vote in favour of all the proposed resolutions

Members or therr appointed Proxies are entitled to ask
questions of the Board at the Annual General Meeting The
Board will answer any such questions unless ()) to do so would
interfere unduly with the conduct of the meeting or involve the
disclosure of confidential nformation, or (i) the answer has
already been gwven on the Company's website, or (ni} to answer
such questions 1s contrary to the Company's best interest or the '
good order of the meeting

By order of the Board

\
T A Cross
Company Secretary

22 May 2013

Registered Office
1st Floor, 35 Piccadilly, London, W1J 0DW
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A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at this
meeting 1s entitled te appoint one or mcre prexies to exercise
all or any of the member’s nghts to attend, speak and vote at
the meeting, using the attached Form of Proxy A proxy need
not alse be a member If a member appoints more than one
proxy to attend the meeting, each proxy must be appointed
to exercise the rights attached to a different share or shares
held by the member If a member wishes to appoint more
than one proxy and so requires additional proxy forms, the
member should contact Capita Registrars on 0871 664 0300
(calls cost 10p per minute plus network extras, lines are open
8 30am -5 30pm Mon - Fn} Completion and return of a
Form of Proxy will not preclude a member from attending
and voting at the meeting should the member so decide

To be valid, the Form of Proxy and any power of attorney
or other authority under which 1t I1s signed {or a notanally
certifted copy of such authonty) must be completed and
returned so as to reach {) the Company's Registrars in
accordance with the reply paid details or {ii) by hand to
Capita Registrars, PXS, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham,
Kent, BR3 4TU not less than 48 hours before the time
appointed for the Annual General Meeting or any
adjournment thereof

A corparation which 1s 2 member can appoint one or more
corporate representatives who may exercise on its behalf all
of its powers as a member, provided that they do not do so
in respect of the same shares

The Company, pursuant to resolution 41(1) of the
Uncertificated Secunties Regulations 2001, specifies that
only those shareholders registered in the register of members
of the Company at 6 00p m on 18th June 2013 {or, If the
meeting 1s adjourned, at 6 00p m on the day two days prior
to the adjourned meeting} be entitled to attend and vote at
the Annual General Meeting (and for the purpose of
determining the number of votes a member may cast}
Changes to the register of members after the relevant tima
shall be disregarded in determining the nghts of any person
to attend and vote at the meeting

If the Chairman, as a result of any proxy appointments, 1s
given discretion as to how the votes the subject of those
proxies are cast and the voting rights in respect of those
discretionary proxies, when added to the interests in the
Company’s secunties already held by the Charrman, result

in the Charrman holding such number of voting rights that
he has a notifiable obligation under the Disclosure and
Transparency Rules, the Chairman will make the necessary
notifications to the Company and the Financial Services
Authority As a result, any member holding 3% or more of
the voting nghts in the Company who grants the Charman a
discretionary proxy in respect of some or all of those voting
nghts and so would otherwise have a notification obligation
under the Disclosure and Transparency Rules, need not make
a separate notification to the Company and the Financial
Services Authornity

The following documents will be available for inspection
during nermal business hours on any week day at the
Company's registered office up until the date of the Annual
Genera! Meeting and at the place of the meeting from 30
minutes before the start of the meeting on 20th June 2013
until the end of the meeting

) acopy of the Memorandum and Articles of Association
of the Company,

1) the contracts of service and lstters of appointment
between the Company or its subsidiary undertakings
and its Directors

To appoint proxies or give/amend an instruction to an
appointed proxy via the CREST system, the CREST message
must be received by the issuer's agent (IO RA10) by 6 D0pm
on 18th June 2013 and time of receipt will be taken as the
time (as determined by the timestamp applied by the

CREST Applications Host) that the issuer's agent is able to
retrieve the message CREST Personal Members or other
CREST Sponsored Members, and CREST Members who
have appointed voting service providers, should refer to

therr sponsor/voting service provider for advice on appointing
proxies via CREST Regulation 35 of the Uncertificated
Securities Regulations 2001 will apply to all proxy
appointments sent by CREST For information on

CREST procedures and system timings, please refer

to the CREST Manual
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Form of Proxy

Proxy Form for use by holders of ordinary shares at the Annual General
Meeting {the 'AGM") to be held on Thursday 20th June 2013

Please read the Notice of the Meeting and the accompanying
explanatory notes to this Proxy Form carefully before completing
this Proxy Form

I/We

[BLOGK CAPITALS PLEASE)

af

being a member/members of Alexander Mining plc, appoint the
Charrman of the AGM or (see Explanatory Note 2}

@ Alexander Mining pic

{the ‘Company'}

as my/our proxy to exercise all or any of my/our rnghts to attend,
speak and vote in respect of my/our voting entitiement on
miy/our behalf as indicated below at the AGM and at any
adjournment thereof (see Explanatory Notes 3, 4 and 5)

D Please tick here if this proxy appointment 1s one of multiple
appointments being made

* For the appointment of more than one proxy, please refer to
Explanatory Note 4 Please clearly mark the boxes below to
nstruct your proxy how to vote

Signature
{see Explanatory Note 6)

Date

RESOLUTIONS For

Agamst Vote withheld Discretionary

ORDINARY RESCLUTIONS
1 Adoption of Report and Accounts

2 Re-election of Mr M L Sutcliffe

3 Re-election of Mr R O Davey

4 Re-election of Mr A M Clegg

5 Re-appointment of BOO LLP

6 Authonty to allot new shares

SPECIAL RESOLUTION
7 Dis-application of pre-empticn nights

Explanatory Notes to the Proxy Form

1 As amember of the Company you are entitled to appaint a proxy to exercise all or any of
your rights to atlend speak and vote at the AGM on your behatf You should appoint a proxy
using the procedure set out Inthase Explanatory Notes

2 A proxy need nat be a member of the Company but must attend the meeting to represent

YOu If you wish to appoint as & proxy a person other than the Chaiman of the AGM  please

delete tha words “the Chazirman of the AGM” and insart tha full name of tha other parson in

1he box provited on this Proxy Form § you sign and return this Prosy Form with no name
inserted In the box the Chairman of the AGM will be deermed 1o be your proxy If tha proxy is
being appointed in relation to less than your full voting entitlement please entar 1 the box
next 1o the praxy holder's rare the number of shares. In relation to which they are authorised
to act as your proxy I left biank your proxy will ba deemed to be authonsed in respect of
your full voting entitlement {or if this Proxy Farm has been Issusd In respact of a designated
account for a shareholder the full voting entitlement for that designated accounty

The completion and return of this Proxy Forn will not prevent you from attending in person

and voung at tha AGM should you subsequently decice 1o do so However if you have

appointed a proxy and attend the mesting in person your proxy appaintment will
automatically ba terminated

4 ‘You are entitiad ta appaint mona than ona proxy provided that each proxy is appointed to
axercisa nghts attached to a different shars or shares hekd by you You may net appoint
more than one proxy te exencise nghts attached to any one share To appont mara than one
proxy pleass use a photocopy of this form or contact Gapaa Registrars on 0871 864 0300
(calls cost 10p per menute plus network extras knes are open B.30am — 5 30¢pm Mon - Fr)
Please inchcate in the box next to the proxy holder's name the number of shares in relation to
which they ans authonsed to act as your proxy Pleage lso indicate by ticking the bax
provided If the proxy instruction s ona of muttipie Instructions being gnsen All forms must
be signed and should be ratumed together in the same envalopa

& i you wish your praxy to cast all of your votes for or against a resolution you should insert an
"X In the appropriate bax If you wish your proxy to cast only cartain votas for and cartain
votas against nsert the relevant number of shares in the appropnate box The “Vote
Withheld” optin 1s provided to enable you to instruct your proxy to abstan from votingon a
partcular resolution A “Vote Withhekl” 15 not a vote in [aw and will not be counted in the
caleutation of the proporhion of the votes “For or  Aganst” a resolution The “Discretionary™

w

option Is provided to enabla you to give discretion to your proxy 1o vole or abstan from
voling on a particular resolution as he or she thinks fit In the absence of instructions your
proxy may vote or abstain from voting as he or she thinks fit on the specified resolutions
and, unless nstructed otherwise may also vote or abstan from veting as he or she thinks fit
on any other busingss {including on & MotonN 1O amend A resolution 16 YOPaSa a Ngw
resolution or to adjourn the AGM) which may property come before the AGM

% This Proxy Form must be signed by tha member o msfher atomey Where the memer is a
corporation the Proxy Form must be executed under s common seal or signed by a duly
authonsed representative of the comporation stating ther capacity {é g director secretary)
In the case of joint holders any ane holder may sign this Proxy Form Tha vote of the senior
Joint holder (whether in person or by proxy) will be taken to the exclusion of all others
senionty being getermined by the order M which the names stand in the regisier of membars.
In respact of the [gint holding

7 Tobevalid the Form of Praxy and any power of attomey or othar authority under which it 1
signed (or a notarially certrfied copy of Such autharity must be completed and retumed so
as ta reach (i} the Company's Regsstrars in 2ccordance with the reply paid detalls (I or by
hand to Capita Registrars PXS 34 Beckenham Road Beckenham Kent BR3 4TU not less
than 48 hours before the time appointed for tha masung

2 Pursuant te Regulation 41 of the Uncertrficated Secunties Regutations 200H  antitlament to
attend and vote at tha AGM and the numbser of votes which may ba cast thareat will be
determined by reference to the register of members of the Company at 6pm on the day
which Is two days befora the day of tha AGM or adjourned meeting Changes 10 antnes on
the register of members after that tme shall be disregarded in detarmining the nghts of any
person 10 attand and vote at the meebting.

9 Al alteranons mace to this Proxy Form must ba intialled by the signatory

10 i you submit mave than one vahd proxy appointment in raspect of the same share or shares
the appointment recerved last before tha latest time for the recaipt of proxes wall take
precedenca H tha Company 1s unabla to determning which was recaived last none of the
proxy appaintmants in respect of that shara or shares shall ba vald

11 Shares held in uncertificated form (e n CREST) may be voted through the CREST Proxy
Voting Service in accordance with the procedures set out n the CREST manual
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